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(3- DESCRIPTION = o oo e

(Ch-ck One)

O Exceilent X} Good [0 Fair {3 Detreriorcted { Ruins [ Unexposed

CONDITION

(Check One)
G Original Site

{Check One)
X] Altered {TJ Unaltered 3 Moved

}-is two. stories high with attic and cellar, approximately 40'-6" x 20'-3

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The original portion of the building is brick and was built about 1720. It
11}

It consists of a central hall with a room on either side on both of the
principal floors, originally there were brick chimneys on each end. "The
front facing the Gunpowder River is built of flemish bond with each header
brick being blue glazed. Henry Chandlee Forman in “Early Manor and
Plantation Houses of Maryland"” mentions that the Presbury House has a
gable end with an unusual glazed brick diamond pattern. Vestiges of this
pattern can be seen near a modern chimney added for heating. The original
floor joists and center supporting timber, which were replaced in 1958, were
hand hewn oak. The walls are all solid brick approximately 13 1/2" thick.
The building has been modified through the years to suit the needs of the
military family occupancy. A two story 18' x 20'8" frame addition was
constructed on the east end of the Pui;dipg in recent years.
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{3 Industry fosophy

[ invention O Science
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[ Mititery . 3 Theoter
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The site of early Methodist meetings prior to the construction of the -
Gunpowder Meeting House.

early Methodist preachers. It was the site of fourteen visits for preaching
and overnight rest by Bishop Asbury between 1772 and 1777. Also of
subsequent stops by the Reverend John Littlejohn, who on August 12, 1777 is
the first preacher (as far as is known) to specifically mention "Presbury's
Preaching House' in his journals. Also of interest is the fact that what
has been called the first recorded quarterly meeting in American Methodism
took place either at the Presbury House or the. Gunpowder Meeting House on
“The following names are written in the bricks at the
base of the wall facing the Gunpowder River:

December 24, 1772.

G. Gouldsmith Presbury born May May 1737
Gouldsmith Presbury born Sep 10, 1749
Martha Presbury August 7 - 1731

Isabel Presbury = - = = = =~

Mr. George Presbury born August 16, 1719
William Gold = = = - - -

Mr. - = = - = Presbury born Feb 6, 1713

and other illegible names. - A
These names appear to have been written in the brick before they were fired.

This house is frequently mentioned in journals of
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EARLY AMERICAN HOUSES ON GUNPOWDER NECK
By Captain M. E. Barker

Nearly three hundred years ago,Thomas O'Daniel and some
of his friends sailed up the Chesapeake Bay end settled on
Gunpowder Neck, the peninsuls now occupled by Edgewoud Ar-
senal. Here they found Indian villages and campsites; for
the abundance of fish and oysters in the bay,the swarms of
wildfowl that wintered in the creeks and along the shore
of this peninsula,the forest filled with useful timber and
many deer, wild turkey and fur-bearing animals, the rich
soil that responded to a minimun of labor, and the ease of
water transportation were attractive alike to whites and

. redskins. With O'Daniel, to whom the peninsula, some ten

miles long and two to four miles wide of nearly twenty
thousand sacres, was granted by Lord Baltimore, came the
founders of many of Maryland's distingulshed families.

Today almost all evidence of the Indians has vanished,
although arrowheads, flint axes and hoes are sometimes
found. A few exceedingly rich spots mark the site of thelr
kitchen-middens. Likewise, the houses the early cettlers
built are rapidly disappearing. In a few years, luxuriant
vegetation will mark the spots where stood the sturdy
homes of these freedom-loving men and women who helped to
found and bulld the Maryland, Free State. )

About 1850, General Cadwalader secured possession of
most of the farms constituting the Gunpowder Peninsula and
for seventy years he and his heirs operated the area as a
plantation and a great hunting preserve. Then, in 1917,
the United States Government took over the entire area as
a site for 1its chemical warfare arsenal and proving

ground,known as Edgewood Arsenal. Thus,many of the houses,

originally built as homes for a home-owning and home-lov-

‘Ing folk,sheltered farm tenants' for some seventy years,and

have laln idle for the last generation exposed to the rav-
ages of time and the elements aided and abetted by human
hands. Many of the houses have been torn down for the
valuable lumber they contained and others have been burned
or partially destroyed.. The few survivors are being swal-
lowed rapidly by the growing forest that is again claiming

.the land.

However, several excellent examples of the early colon-
1al farm house still exist for our study.
~ The Watterson homestead (constructed about 1680) 1is a
four-room log house of purely utilitarian design, which
grew from the original pioneer,. one-room log cabin built in
1666. The living room (the original &abin) 1is 14' x 18!
and the kitchen is 1l2' x 14'. Above each of these rooms

(1s52) . -«
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1s a bedroom of similar size. All the windows are very
small, for glass was a luxury when this house was con-
structed. There is a huge double fireplace to the chimney
in the center, made of brick imported from England. The
fireplace on the kitchen side is provided with hooks from
which the various cooking kettles were suspended. A ladder
in each end of the house provides access to the attic or
upstairs rooms. The walls of this house are made of hewn
chestnut logs notched at the ends and pinned together by
white oak dowels an inch or more in diameter. The gables,
window and door frames were made of hand.riven chestnut
boards. The walls were chinked with lime plaster,now hard
and rocklike. The massive sleepers, Joists and rafters,
hewn of white oak, are still hard and sound after two hun-
dred and fifty years of use. What a tale of life,love and
labor this old house could tell if it suddenly became en-
dowed with the power of speechl :

The Pressbury house, "Quiet Lodge", is & type frequent-
ly seen 1in tidewater Virgirla and Maryland. It is two
stories with a narrow attic, constructed about 1740 of
brick imported from England. In those days brick came over

as ballast, hence were econcmical until they started the

twenty mile Journey by ox-cart from the present ghost
town, but then thriving seaport and capital, Joppa Town.
All the woodwork in m"Quiet Lodge" 1s hand sawn or hewn
from sturdy native timber. The house 1s twenty feet wide,
forty feet long,provided witk a large chimney et each end.

"Quiet Lodge" stands on a beautiful knoll overlooking the

wide Gunpowder River with the Chesapeake Bay in the far:
distance. The house was s0 well constructed that only
minor repairs were needed in 192/ when it was recondition-
ed,enlargeqtgggﬁgydgrnized as a set of officers!_quarters.

" The Ricketts and Whittaker houses were built to nearly
the same floor plan as "Quiet Lodge" and at about the same
time. These houses were constructed of wood, with the
walls plastered but no ceiling. The upstairs floor, how-

-ever, was made of foot wide boards, two inches thick. The

huge beams supporting the upstalrs floor contain numerous
spikes and pegs on which corn was hung to dry. Many other
everyday uses could be founc for such supports...A plan
of the Ricketts house is shown. e i
The Boone house was purely utilitarian in design. In
compactness of plan and utilization of floor space,it out-

‘points most of the modern smcll homes now so popular.

In those days . it was necessary to provide. a sleeping

.- place for the hired men and the large crop of boys usually

found in the pioneer homes two hundred years ago, so .the

.. long, low attic built into the Boone house (as well as all
‘. .the other Gunpowder Neck colonial houses) was very useful

NA-1
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indeed. Here the boys slept on pallets the year round,
Another valuable feature of thls house was the perfect
ventilation and natural lighting of the kitchen.

In the Boone house, ail the sills, rafters, sleepers,
Jolsts, and corner posts of the frame were hand hewn from
white oak and chestnut, The sills are 12" x 12",the posts
of the frame are 4" X 4", the rafters 4" x 6", the Jolsts
are 4" x 8", whlle the sleepers are 4" x 10", The roof is
thick hand riven cypress shingles. The weatherboards were
sawn from yellow poplar and planed by hand. The plaster,
which is still sound, was held on lathes split from chest-
nut and red oak. The fireplace in the 1living room was
beautifully proportioned and had a strong draft. No doubt
many a cheerful evenlng was spent here by generation after
generation of Boones while the cold west wind howled a-
round the corners and sang through the limbs of their
mighty white oak nelghbors. 3ut the howling wind was deni-
ed entrance, for there were no doors, windows, or otner
openings on the west end, which is a structural feature
common to"all the old nouses on this Peninsula. Another
common characteristic of all the houses 1s that they face
the south, with the greater length east and west. In few
of the early homes was there any provision for heating the
sleeping rooms, the Ricketts house being the only one to
contain upstairs fireplaces. '

A somewhat later and morz pretentlous house is the Day
homestead, constructed asbout 1760 on the site of the earl-
ier Rouse homestead. Here we see true colonial dormer
windows, wide porches, narrowv crooked stairways,a commodi-
ous vegetable cellar, wlth plenty of room for a large and
growing family. The main body of the Day house 1s 18 feet

‘ wide and 74 feet long. At tae east end, the porch becomes

a pantry and wash room, 8' x 20', on the south side of the
kitchen. The 1living room 1is 18' x 32', with a big fire-

-~ place at each end of the room. The south porch 1s 54!
"long and 8' wide. Therc is a large kitchen and pautry, a

dining room 1in which 30 people  could be aerved ol one
time, the llving room wvd ono bedroon on the groung loor,
Upstalrs there are four bedrooms. Of course, Papa and
Mamma Day slept on thelr feather bed near the fire in the
living room, whille the children and grun&bhildren scamnper-
ed away to bed in the cold rooms set apart for their use.
Houses that can serve a famlly & hundred years, sheltor
tenant farmers for seventy vears more, then lie fdle anc
subject to the ravages of “ime and hunun marauders fo)
another twenty years,AND ST1LL STAND, are worthy of emula-
tion. Those colonlal carpenters built houses,not to sell
but as homes for themselves und their children's children,
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